IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI NO. 2010-CA-00961

LOUISIANA EXTENDED CARE CENTERS, INC.; LEGACY HEALTH CARE SERVICES, INC.; MAGNOLIA MANAGEMENT CORPORATION; AND ESTATE OF ROBERTA LANE, by and through ALICE HAYES, ADMINISTRATRIX;GEORGIA SMITH, AS CONSERVATOR FOR EVA MONTGOMERY; ADAMS COMMUNITYCARE CENTER, LLC; LEGACY HEALTH CARE SERVICES, INC.; LOUISIANA EXTENDED CARE CENTERS, INC.; LEGACY CARE, INC.; MAGNOLIA MANAGEMENT CORPORATION; JOHN STASSI; DAVID STALLARD; ELTON G. BEEBE, JR.; EDWARD E. CROW,

APPELLANTS

V.

MISSISSIPPI INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCATION

APPELLEE

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

- Whether the Circuit Court of Madison County erred in finding that, as a matter of law, Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association (MIGA) is not statutorily obligated to indemnify Appellants/Defendants the statutory maximum of \$300,000 for claims covered by an insolvent insurer pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 83-23-101, et seq.?
- 2. Whether the Circuit Court of Madison County erred in holding that, as a matter of law, Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association (MIGA) was entitled to credit for amounts paid by solvent insurance carriers to settle negligence claims against nursing homes pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 83-23-123, that were not "covered claims" pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 83-23-109(f)?
- 3. Whether the Circuit Court of Madison County erred in finding that, as a matter of law, Defendants/Appellants' settlement with solvent insurance carriers absolves Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association (MIGA) of its statutory obligation to indemnify when there existed no solvent insurance coverage for the claims for which the insolvent insurer was obligated to pay?
- 4. Whether the Circuit Court of Madison County erred in granting Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association (MIGA) Motion for Summary Judgment and denying Defendants/Appellants' Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment?

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT

Defendant/Appellants respectfully request oral argument due to the important issues raised by this appeal. This appeal turns on a clear understanding of the record, applicable case law, and statutory law. A thorough discussion of the record and applicable law will be beneficial to this Court and the parties.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Estate of Eva Montgomery, by an through a conservator, filed a nursing home negligence action in the Circuit Court of Adams County, Mississippi against the owners and operators of a nursing home ("Montgomery case"). The Complaint alleged that the owners and operators of the nursing home were negligent in caring for Eva Montgomery during her residency from approximately June 8, 1993 to July of 2003. Specifically, it was alleged that while Ms. Montgomery was a resident at the nursing home she suffered: falls on at least fifty-four (54) occasions from 08/10/93 through 12/9/99; multiple injuries received between 01/30/95 and 08/04/99 including scratches, abrasions, and bruises; dehydration in 12/94 and on 02/01/01; weight loss (over the period of 10/24/95 – 12/21/99); pressure ulcers/skin breakdown on various occasions from 10/10/95 through 08/27/00; contractures in 12/00; UTI on 08/14/92; infections on 07/01/96, 12/21/98, and 11/21/00; multiple incidents of failure by the facility to follow physician's orders; and fraudulent, incomplete, or inaccurate documentation throughout the residency.

The Estate of Roberta Lane, by and through an Administratrix, filed a nursing home negligence action in the Circuit Court of Sharkey County, Mississippi, against the owners and operators of a nursing home (the "Lane case"). It was alleged that the defendants were negligent as the owners and operators of the nursing home during Roberta Lane's residency from approximately 1989 to 1998. Specifically, the Lane Complaint alleged that during her residency, Ms. Lane suffered: an infected amputation stump in January 1995; falls in June 1995, May 1996, December 1996, March 1997, September 1998, October 16, 1998 and a fall which resulted in a fractured hip on October 25, 1998; a fractured finger in September 1997; multiple open

wounds throughout June 1996 to June 1998; an ear infection in November 1997 and several incidents of hyperglemcia and hypoglycemia at various times during her residency.

During the period that Ms. Montgomery and Ms. Lane were residents at the nursing homes, several insurers issued policies of insurance insuring one or more of the nursing home defendants. One such insurer, Reciprocal of America (ROA), was declared insolvent and placed into liquidation on June 20, 2003. Pursuant to the provisions of the Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association Law ("The Guaranty Act"). Miss. Code Ann. §§83-23-101 et seq., Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association ("MIGA") assumed ROA's obligations under the ROA policies. The respective nursing homes and their insurers, excluding the insolvent ROA, subsequently settled the claims brought on behalf of Ms. Lane and Ms. Montgomery for any exposures arising out of the coverage periods of their policies, specifically reserving the right to recover an additional \$300,000 from MIGA; the statutory limit that may be recovered from MIGA pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §83-23-115(1)(a)(iii) for the ROA coverage. MIGA then informed the nursing home defendants that it had no duty to indemnify and would make no indemnity payment to settle or otherwise resolve the Conservators' claims for negligent acts that occurred during the time that ROA was providing coverage.

The nursing home defendants, the Estate of Eva Montgomery, and the Estate of Roberta Lane (hereinafter collectively the "Defendants") filed motions with the respective Circuit Courts to approve the parties' settlements. As the interests of MIGA were affected by the settlement reached, it was served a copy of the motion and attended the hearings. Following the hearings, the settlements were approved by the Circuit Courts.

Subsequently, MIGA filed declaratory actions in both the Montgomery and Lane cases seeking to have the Circuit Courts construe the applicable provisions of the ROA policies and the Guaranty Act statutes to determine whether MIGA was obligated to indemnify the Defendants for the claims occurring during the insolvent ROA's coverage period. Both declaratory actions were consolidated into one action before the Circuit Court of Madison County.

On September 11, 2009, MIGA filed a Motion for Summary Judgment and a Memorandum in Support asserting entitlement to credit for amounts paid by the solvent insurers to settle claims for injuries arising out of the coverage periods of their policies pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §§83-23-123. In opposition, Defendants responded with a Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment and Memorandum of Support. Defendants sought an Order requiring MIGA to indemnify the Defendants the statutory maximum of \$300,000, as provided by law, as there existed no solvent insurance coverage for the incidents for which MIGA and ROA were obligated to pay thereby rendering the exhaustion provision of Miss. Code Ann. §§83-23-123 inapplicable.

A hearing on the Motions for Summary Judgment was held on February 8, 2010 wherein the Circuit Court of Madison County heard arguments by both parties. On May 14, 2010, the Circuit Court Judge entered an Order granting MIGA's Motion for Summary Judgment and Denying Defendants' Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment finding that MIGA was entitled to credit for amounts paid by the other insurance carriers to settle the claims in the nursing home cases.

Defendants filed a timely Notice of Appeal on June 11, 2010 asking this Court to reverse the decision of the Circuit Court. The instant appeal followed.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

I. The Montgomery Case

The Estate of Eva Montgomery, by and through a conservator, filed a nursing home negligence action in the Circuit Court of Adams County, Mississippi against Louisiana Extended Care Centers, Inc. and Magnolia Management Corporation (hereinafter the "nursing home defendants") and others in Cause No. 01-IV-0012-S ("Montgomery case")¹, Supp. R. 121 - 153. It was alleged that the nursing home defendants were negligent as owners and operators of Adams County Nursing Center in caring for Eva Montgomery during her residency from approximately June 8, 1993 to July of 2003. Specifically, it was alleged that while Ms. Montgomery was a resident at Adams County Nursing Center she suffered: falls on at least fifty-four (54) occasions from 08/10/93 through 12/9/99; multiple injuries received between 01/30/95 and 08/04/99 including scratches, abrasions, and bruises; dehydration in 12/94 and on 02/01/01; weight loss (over the period of 10/24/95 - 12/21/99); pressure ulcers/skin breakdown on various occasions from 10/10/95 through 08/27/00; contractures in 12/00; UTI on 08/14/92; infections on 07/01/96, 12/21/98, and 11/21/00; multiple incidents of failure by the facility to follow physician's orders; and fraudulent, incomplete, or inaccurate documentation throughout the residency. Supp. R. 121 – 153; Supp. R. 354 - 389; H.T. 16 - 17.

During the period that Montgomery was a resident at Adams Nursing Center, St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company ("St. Paul"), Reciprocal of America (formerly known as Virginia Insurance Reciprocal)("ROA"), Caliber One Indemnity ("Caliber One"), Colony Insurance Company ("Colony") and Certain Underwriters at Lloyds,

London ("Lloyds") issued policies of insurance insuring one or more of the nursing home defendants.

St. Paul issued Policy No. NK00300288, effective August 1, 1992 to August 1, 1993; effective August 1, 1993 to August 1, 1994; and effective August 1, 1994 to August 1, 1995 with limits of \$1,000,000 for each event for health care commercial general liability coverage and \$1,000,000 for any one person for health care professional liability coverage. Exhibit A to Supp. R. 1840 – 1976; 1594 – 1711; 1712 – 1839. St. Paul also issued Policy No. 503XB6279, effective August 1, 1992 to August 1, 1993; effective August 1, 1993 to August 1, 1994; and effective August 1, 1994 to August 1, 1995, with limits of \$5,000,000 each event. Exhibit A to Supp. R.113 – 146; 147 - 216; 1314 - 1337; 1366 - 1438.

ROA issued primary and excess policies insuring the nursing home with coverage from August 1, 1995 to September 1, 1999 with a total maximum coverage during Ms. Montgomery's residency in excess of the MIGA statutory limit of \$300,000 pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §83-23-115(1)(a)(iii). Exhibit A to Supp. R. 1147 – 1184; 1185 – 1216; 217 – 250; 1248 – 1313.

Caliber One issued Policy No. GPO 0001045-01, effective September 1, 1999 to June 18, 2000, with limits of \$1,000,000 for each event for health care commercial general liability coverage, and \$1,000,000 for any one person for health care professional liability coverage. Exhibit A to Supp. R. 1527-1593; 2075 - 2112. Colony issued Policy No. AP706014, effective June 18, 2000 to January 1, 2001, with limits of \$1,000,000 for each event for health care commercial general liability coverage, and

¹ References to the Record are noted as R ____, references to the Supplemental Record are noted as Supp. R.__, and references to the Hearing Transcript are noted as H.T. ___.

\$1,000,000 for any one person for health care professional liability coverage. Exhibit A to Supp. R. 1477-1526.

Lloyds issued Policy No. UP00US360029, effective January 1, 2001 to June 18, 2002, on which Adams Community Care Center, LLC, was added as a named insured, effective May 1, 2001, with limits of \$1,000,000 for each event for health care commercial general liability coverage and \$1,000,000 for any one person for health care professional liability coverage. Exhibit A to Supp. R. 2113 - 2236.

Following the filing of the original Montgomery Complaint on January 24, 2002, ROA assumed the defense of this action and retained counsel for all of the nursing home defendants. Subsequently, St. Paul, Caliber One, Colony, and Lloyds were placed on notice of this action and began sharing in the defense costs with ROA on a one-fourth cost share going forward.

On or about June 20, 2003, ROA was declared insolvent and placed into liquidation in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Supp. R. 26 – 30. Pursuant to the provisions of the Guaranty Act, Miss. Code Ann. §§83-23-101 *et seq.*, MIGA assumed ROA's obligations under the ROA policies. MIGA, St. Paul, Colony, and Lloyds agreed to retain Lynda Carter as counsel for the nursing home defendants following ROA's insolvency.

On or about October 6, 2004, the nursing home defendants and their insurers, St. Paul, Colony, Caliber One, and Lloyds, reached an agreement with the Conservator to settle all of the claims *arising out of or in any way related to any incidents which occurred or accrued on or before August 1, 1995 and/or on or after September 1, 1999 or otherwise fall within or arise under the coverage periods of the referenced policies issued by St. Paul, Colony, Caliber One, and Lloyds*, which

were asserted or could have been asserted in this action. The settlement agreement specifically reserved the Conservator's right to recover an additional \$300,000 from MIGA; the statutory limit that may be recovered from MIGA pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §83-23-115(1)(a)(iii) for the ROA coverage. Supp. R. 284 - 309. By letter dated October 7, 2004, MIGA was advised of the Conservator's settlement offer seeking MIGA's maximum statutory obligation of \$300,000. Supp. R. 310 - 311. However by letter dated October 19, 2004, MIGA advised that it was not obligated to contribute to any settlement on behalf of ROA. Supp. R. 312 - 316.

All insurers named above, except MIGA, conditionally accepted the Conservator's settlement demand and agreed to pay an amount to settle and release all claims against the nursing home defendants and said insurers for any exposures *arising out of the coverage periods of their policies*. MIGA was advised of the parties' desire to settle the claims against them but refused to make any indemnity payment to settle or otherwise resolve the Conservator's claims for negligent acts that occurred during the time that ROA provided coverage. Despite MIGA's refusal to fulfill its statutory obligation, the nursing home defendants and their insurers negotiated a settlement with the Conservator to settle the claims against them.

On January 4, 2006, the nursing home defendants and the Conservator (hereinafter collectively the "Defendants") filed a motion with the Adams County Circuit Court to approve the parties' settlement agreement. Supp. R. 156 – 163. As the interests of MIGA were affected by the settlement reached, it was served with a copy of the motion to approve the settlement in order to give MIGA an opportunity to make any objection to the settlement it deemed appropriate. Following a hearing on January 20, 2006, the Adams County Circuit Court entered an order approving the motion to settle

on January 20, 2006. Supp. R. 317 - 319. MIGA attended the hearing on the motion to approve the settlement.

Subsequently, MIGA filed a declaratory action seeking to have the Circuit Court construe the applicable provisions of the ROA policies and the Guaranty Act statutes to determine whether it was obligated to indemnify the Defendants for the claims accruing during the insolvent ROA's coverage period. R. 10 - 13.

II. The Lane Case

The Estate of Roberta Lane, by and through an Administratrix, filed a nursing home negligence action in the Circuit Court of Sharkey County, Mississippi, against Louisiana Extended Care Centers, Inc. Magnolia Management Corporation, and Legacy Health Care Services, Inc., (the "nursing home defendants") in Cause No. 2000-59 (the "Lane case"). Supp. R. 31 – 51. It was alleged and pled that the nursing home defendants were negligent as the owners and operators of Heritage Manor of Rolling Fork nursing home during Roberta Lane's residency from approximately 1989 to 1998. Specifically, the Lane Complaint alleged that during her residency, Ms. Lane suffered: an infected amputation stump in January 1995; falls in June 1995, May 1996, December 1996, March 1997, September 1997, September 1998, October 16, 1998 and a fall which resulted in a fractured hip on October 25, 1998; a fractured finger in September 1997; a Stage II stasis ulcer in June 1996; a Stage II superficial wound or abrasion in June 1998; an ear infection in November 1997 and several incidents of hyperglemcia and hypoglycemia at various times during her residency. Supp. R. 31 – 51; Supp. R. 390 - 419; H.T. 16 - 17.

During the period that Lane was a resident at Heritage Manor, St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company ("St. Paul") and Reciprocal of America (formerly known as

Virginia Insurance Reciprocal) ("ROA") issued policies of insurance insuring the nursing home defendants. St. Paul issued policy NK00300290 effective August 1, 1992 to August 1, 1995, with limits of \$1,000,000 for each event for health care commercial general liability coverage and \$1,000,000 any one person for health care professional liability coverage. Exhibit A to Supp. R. 371 - 507; 508 - 631; 632 - 766. St. Paul also issued a second policy, effective August 1, 1992 to August 1, 1995, with limits of \$5,000,000 for each event for health care umbrella excess liability coverage. Exhibit A to Supp. R. 371 - 507; 508 - 631; 632 - 766. St. Paul also issued a second policy, effective August 1, 1992 to August 1, 1995, with limits of \$5,000,000 for each event for health care umbrella excess liability coverage. Exhibit A to Supp. R. 1 - 112. ROA issued primary and excess policies insuring the defendants with coverage from August 1, 1995 to September 1, 1999 with a total maximum coverage during Ms. Lane's residency in excess of the MIGA statutory limit of \$300,000 pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. \$83-23-115(1)(a)(iii). Exhibit A to Supp. R. 1147 - 1184; 1185 - 1216; 217 - 250; 1248 - 1313.

Following the filing of the original Lane Complaint in September 2000, ROA assumed the defense of this action and retained counsel for all of the nursing home defendants. In November 2002, St. Paul was placed on notice of the Lane action, and St. Paul began sharing in the costs for defending with ROA on a 50/50 basis in November 2002. On or about June 20, 2003, ROA was declared insolvent and placed into liquidation in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Pursuant to the provisions of the Guaranty Act, Miss. Code Ann. §§83-23-101 *et seq.*, MIGA assumed ROA's obligations under the ROA policies. MIGA and St. Paul agreed to retain Lynda Carter as counsel for the defendants following ROA's insolvency.

In the spring of 2004, MIGA and St. Paul agreed to attempt to settle the Estate's claims against the nursing home defendants through mediation. However on June 22, 2004, one day prior to a scheduled June 23, 2004 mediation, MIGA issued a letter

informing St. Paul and the Estate that it had changed its position regarding its obligation to indemnify. Supp. R. 320-321. MIGA further stated that while it would attend the mediation and continue to provide a defense to the defendants, it claimed no duty to indemnify under the provisions of the ROA policies and Miss. Code Ann. §83-23-123. Supp. R. 320 – 321. On June 23, 2004, the parties, including MIGA, attended a mediation in Hinds County, Mississippi. However, due to MIGA's refusal to indemnify the nursing home defendants, the mediation was unsuccessful. Such refusal to indemnify was without justifiable basis or a viable argument.

Following the failed mediation, the Estate offered to settle its claims against the nursing home defendants on August 17, 2004 for the claims and damages that occurred or accrued during the coverage period provided by the St. Paul policies and \$300,000 for and all claims, causes of action and damages that occurred or accrued during the coverage period provided by ROA. Supp. R. 322 - 332.

The nursing home defendants determined that the amount of \$300,000 for alleged negligent acts that occurred during the ROA coverage period would be a reasonable settlement value since most of the claimed injuries suffered by Ms. Lane were due to the negligence of the nursing home defendants that occurred **during the ROA coverage period** including, six falls, the last of which resulted in a broken hip, a fractured finger, multiple open wounds, one or more infections and several incidents of hyperglemcia and hypoglycemia. Each of those incidents constituted **a separate and unrelated "medical incident" as defined by the insurance policies, including that of ROA.**

St. Paul conditionally accepted the Estate's settlement demand and agreed to pay to settle and release all claims against the nursing home defendants and St. Paul for any exposures **arising out of the coverage periods of the St. Paul policies**.

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