IN THE MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT CAUSE NO. 2010-CA-00961

LOUISIANA EXTENDED CARE CENTERS, INC., APPELLANTS/DEFENDANTS ET AL.

VS.

MISSISSIPPI INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION APPELLEE/PLAINTIFF

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF MADISON COUNTY

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

Oral Argument Requested

R. E. PARKER, JR. CLIFFORD C. WHITNEY III VARNER, PARKER & SESSUMS, P.A. 1110 Jackson Street Post Office Box 1237 Vicksburg, Mississippi 39181-1237 Telephone: 601/638-8741 Facsimile: 601/638-8666 John Stassi

David Stallard

Elton G. Beebe, Jr.

Edward E. Crow

ATTORNEYS:

A. Lance Reins WILKES & MCHUGH, P.A. One North Dale Mabry, Suite 800 Tampa, Florida 33609

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT 10 A. Standard of Review. 10 B. The Insurance Guaranty Act and the Exhaustion Provision. 10 C. The Lane and Montgomery Cases Each Involve a Single Medical Incident Constituting a Single "Covered Claim" on which Payments Were Made by Solvent Insurance that Serve as a Credit against
MIGA's Obligations
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

•

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

- ---

Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co. of Illinois v. Medical Protective Co. of Ft. Wayne, 575 F. Supp. 901, 903 (N.D. Ill. 1983)
American Physicians Ins. Exchange v. Garcia, 876 S.W.2d 842 (Tex. 1994) <u>23, 24</u>
Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. v. Lawyers' Mutual Ins. Co., 855 P.2d 1263, 1266 (Cal. 1993)
CD Investment Co., v. California Ins. Guar. Ass'n., 84 Cal. App.4th 1410 (2000) . 21-23
Columbia Cas. Co. v. CP Nat., Inc., 175 S.W.3d 339, 348 (Tex. App. 2004) <u>24</u>
Cooper v. Missey, 881 So.2d 889, 893 (Miss. App. 2004) <u>15, 19, 20</u>
Hedgepeth v. Johnson, 975 So.2d 235, 237 (Miss. 2008)
Leitch v. Mississippi Ins. Guar. Ass'n, 27 So.3d 396, 400 (Miss. 2010) <u>21</u>
Madison Materials Co., Inc. v. St. Paul Fire & Marine Ins. Co., 523 F.3d 541, 545 (5th Cir. 2008)
Mississippi Ins. Guar. Ass'n v. Cole ex rel. Dillon, 954 So.2d 407 (Miss. 2007) <u>20, 21</u>
Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association v. Vaughn, 529 So.2d 540 (Miss. 1988) . <u>10</u>
National Union Fire Ins. Co. v. Mississippi Ins. Guar. Ass'n, 990 So.2d 174, 176 (Miss. 2008)
North American Specialty Ins. Co. v. Royal Surplus Lines Ins. Co., 541 F.3d 552, 554-555 (5th Cir. 2008) <u>12, 16, 17</u>
Royal Ins. Co. of America v. Caliber One Indem. Co., 465 F.3d 614 (5 th Cir. 2006) <u>19, 20</u>
U.S. Fidelity & Guarn. Co. v. Omnibank, 812 So.2d 196, 200 (Miss. 2002) <u>13</u>
Universal Underwriters Ins. Co. v. Ford, 734 So.2d 173 (Miss. 1999) <u>18, 19</u>
Windham v. Latco of Mississippi, Inc., 972 So.2d 608, 610 (Miss. 2008) <u>10</u>

TABLE OF STATUTES

Miss.	Code Ann.	§ 83-23-105	••	••	•••	•••	•	• •	•••	•	•••	•••	•	• •	•	••	•	•		••	. <u>4</u>
Miss.	Code Ann.	§ 83-23-109	••		• • •	••		•		•	• •	• •	•	••	•	••	•	•	•••	••	<u>11</u>
Miss.	Code Ann.	§ 83-23-115	• •		•••	••		• •	••		••	••	٠	• •	•	• •	•	•	• •	<u>12</u> ,	<u>23</u>
Miss.	Code Ann.	§ 83-23-123(1)	• •		••			••	•	•	<u>1</u> ,	<u>2</u> ,	<u>9</u> ,	. <u>1</u>	<u>0</u> ,	<u>2(</u>	<u>)</u> ,	<u>21</u> ,	<u>24</u> ,	<u>25</u>

_

.

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT

MIGA submits that oral argument in this case would be helpful to the Court. The issue at hand is one of first impression in this state and involves the construction of an important statutory provision governing the rights and obligations of the Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association. As the Court will see from the discussion in this Brief, the question of whether MIGA is entitled to credit under statute for payments made by solvent insurance covering different periods of a single, continuing "medical incident" involves complex issues of statutory interpretation and analysis of out-of-state authority. The Court could well benefit from clarification of these matters during oral argument.

Respectfully submitted,

MISSISSIPPI INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

Bv: FFORD C? WHITNEY III

OF COUNSEL:

VARNER, PARKER & SESSUMS, P.A. Post Office Box 1237 1110 Jackson Street Vicksburg, Mississippi 39181-1237 Telephone: 601/638-8741 Facsimile: 601/638-8666

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- 1. Whether this case involves a single "medical incident" and single "covered claim" arising from the on-going care and treatment of the nursing home resident, or whether there were multiple, separate occurrences and claims based on each incident occurring during the ten year nursing home stay.
- 2. Whether the Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association ("MIGA") is entitled to a credit under Miss. Code Ann. § 83-23-123(1) for payments to the claimant from solvent insurance policies covering different chronological portions of the same continuing "medical incident".

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of Case, Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below.

This case involves two declaratory judgment actions filed by MIGA in the Circuit Court of Madison County in June 2005, seeking a ruling as to MIGA's entitlement to a credit under Miss. Code Ann. § 83-23-123 for solvent insurance payments made to the plaintiffs in two separate nursing home negligence suits. The plaintiffs in the underlying tort suits were the Estate of Roberta Lane ("Lane") and the Estate of Eva Montgomery ("Montgomery") and the defendants were Louisiana Extended Care Centers, Inc. and other persons and entities affiliated with Magnolia Management Company, the parent company of the owners and operators of the nursing homes. The tort suit parties are defendants in the declaratory judgment actions.

On August 20, 2007 the Circuit Court of Madison County issued an Order consolidating MIGA's declaratory judgment actions, as the two cases involve identical legal and factual issues. See Docket, included in Appellants' Record Excerpts at 1. MIGA subsequently filed a Motion for Summary Judgment (S. R.16-25; R.E. 1) in the consolidated cases on September 11, 2009, and Lane, Montgomery and the other declaratory judgment defendants filed a cross motion for summary judgment (S. R. 258-283; R.E. 2). By an Opinion and Order dated May 14, 2010 (Appellants' Excerpts at 2), the Hon. Samac Richardson granted summary judgment for MIGA and denied the defendants' cross motion, holding that the solvent insurance payments to Lane and Montgomery absolved MIGA under § 83-23-123 of any liability. A Final Judgment (Appellants' Excerpts at 3) was entered on June 24, 2010, after Lane and Montgomery had already filed their Notice of Appeal on June 11, 2010.

B. Statement of Facts.

1. Magnolia Management Company.

Magnolia Management Corporation, Louisiana Extended Care Centers, Inc. and certain of their subsidiaries, affiliates, employees, officers and directors (collectively "Magnolia") own and operate nursing homes. Among these nursing homes are Heritage Manor of Rolling Fork ("Heritage Manor") and the Adams County Nursing Center ("ACNC"). Roberta Lane was a resident/patient at Heritage Manor, and Eva Montgomery was a resident/patient of ACNC in Natchez.

2. Magnolia's Insurance Coverage.

Magnolia was covered under a Health Care Facility Professional Liability Policy issued by Reciprocal of America ("ROA"), formerly Virginia Insurance

Reciprocal, covering "Medical Incidents." The 1995-1996 policy is found at R.E. 3 (S. R. Ex. A 001147-001177). The policy was issued on an annual basis for the period from August 1, 1995 to September 1, 1999. Magnolia was the primary insured and certain of its subsidiaries, affiliates, employees, officers and directors (including Louisiana Extended Care Centers, Inc., David Stallard, Elton G. Beebe, Jr., Edward E. Crow) were also covered.

The ROA policy insured against "all sums which the Insured shall be legally obligated to pay as damages because of injury to which this policy applies arising out of a Medical Incident, occurring during the Policy Period." Policy, § I(A). A "Medical Incident" is defined as "any act or omission . . . in the furnishing of professional health care services." The definition states that "any such act or omission, together with related acts or omissions in furnishing such services to any one person, shall be considered one Medical Incident." Policy § VII(D) (emphasis added).

Magnolia, Louisiana Extended Care Centers, Inc., and/or certain of their subsidiaries, affiliates, officers and directors, including Defendants in this case, were covered by "occurrence" type professional liability policies issued by the following insurance carriers for the following policy periods:

a. 8/1/89 - 8/1/95	St. Paul Fire & Marine Ins.	\$1mm/\$3mm \$5mm excess
b. 8/1/95 - 9/1/99	ROA	\$11mm/\$13mm \$1mm/\$3mm

c.	9/1/99 - 6/18/00	Caliber Ins. Co.	\$1mm/\$3mm
			\$10mm excess

d. 6/18/00 - 1/1/01 Colony Ins. Co. \$1mm/\$1mm

e. 1/1/01 - 6/18/02 U. S. Risk/Lloyd's of London \$1mm/\$3mm

These policies (on CD) were introduced as Exhibit to MIGA's Motion for Summary Judgment, and their 2,200 pages are found in paper form in Exhibit A to the Supplemental Record, Volumes I - XIII. The policies other than ROA's define a covered "occurrence" to include "continuous or repeated exposure to substantially the same general harmful conditions."

ROA was placed into liquidation by Order of the State Corporation Commission at Richmond, Virginia dated June 20,2003. Exhibit "B" to MIGA's Motion for Summary Judgment (S. R. 26-30; R.E. 4). The ROA policy or policies issued to Magnolia are within the scope and application of the Mississippi Insurance Guaranty Association Act, Miss. Code Ann. § 83-23-105.

3. The Lane Case

On September 13, 2000, the Estate of Roberta Lane filed an action in the Circuit Court of Sharkey County, Mississippi, against Louisiana Extended Care, Legacy and Magnolia, in Cause No. 2000-59 (the "Lane Case"). The Amended Complaint in the Lane Case alleges negligence on the part of the Defendants, as the owners/operators of Heritage Manor, in caring for Roberta Lane while she was

a resident at Heritage Manor from 1989 to 1998. (S. R. 31-53; R.E. 5). MIGA was not made a party to the Lane Case.

Contrary to what counsel opposite would have the Court believe, the Amended Complaint in the Lane Case does not specify discrete incidents of wrongdoing occurring on certain dates. Instead it makes the following broad allegations of negligence in the overall care and treatment of the patient, as follows:

19. Defendants [the nursing home] owed a duty to residents, including ROBERTA LANE, to provide adequate and appropriate custodial care and supervision, which a reasonably careful person would provide under similar circumstances.

20. Defendants' employees owed a duty to residents, including ROBERTA LANE, to exercise reasonable care in providing care and services in a safe and beneficial manner.

21. Defendants breached this duty by failing to deliver care and services that a reasonably careful person would have provided under similar circumstances by failing to prevent mistreatment, abuse and neglect of ROBERTA LANE.

Lane Amended Complaint (S. R. 31-53; R.E. 5) at 5. Although the Amended

Complaint contains a laundry list of the types of negligent care allegedly occurring

over a ten year period, it never specifies when these incidents occurred, nor does

the complaint attempt to connect a specific injury to a specific act or omission.

Amended Complaint, ¶ 22 at pp. 5-9 (S. R. 31-53; R.E. 5). Thus, the damage

allegation in the Amended Complaint reads as follows:

24. As a direct and proximate result of the negligence of Defendants as set out above, ROBERTA LANE suffered injuries, including falls, dehydration, weight loss, symptomatic hyperglycemia, urinary tract infections, bone fractures, pneumonia, pressure sores, ear infections, anemia, and also suffered extreme pain, suffering, mental anguish, embarrassment, and fright, all of which required hospitalization and medical treatment, and all of which required ROBERTA LANE to incur significant hospital and medical expenses.

Amended Complaint, ¶ 24 at p. 10 (S. R. 31-53; R.E. 5).

In 2004, Louisiana Extended Care, Legacy and Magnolia settled the claims of the Estate of Roberta Lane for \$750,000.00. St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company (a solvent insurance company) paid \$450,000.00 of the settlement. The Estate of Roberta Lane was to attempt to collect the remaining \$300,000.00 of the settlement from MIGA. MIGA was not a party to the settlement.

The settlement documents attempt to artificially parse out the continuing acts pled in the Amended Complaint into individual incidents, e.g., instead of referencing the ongoing failure to turn the patient in bed, as alleged in the complaint (¶ 22), the settlement documents cite a specific day of a specific incident, which of course occurred on a day outside of the ROA policy periods. The Defendants then attempted to limit the settlement to delineated acts occurring outside the effective dates of the ROA policy(s). MIGA submits that this was a transparent and ineffectual attempt to prevent MIGA from obtaining a credit under the Guaranty Act for the payments from solvent insurance. See settlement documents attached to MIGA's Motion for Summary Judgment as Exhibit "D" (S. R. 54-120; R. E. 6).

4. The Montgomery Case.

On January 24, 2002, Georgia Smith, as Conservator for Eva Montgomery, filed an action in the Circuit Court of Adams County, Mississippi, against certain Magnolia defendants in Cause No. 02-KV-0012-S (the "Montgomery Case").¹ As in the Lane Case, the complaint in the Montgomery Case (S. R. 121-155; R.E. 7) broadly alleged negligence on the part of the defendants, as owners/operators of the ACNC in caring for Eva Montgomery while she was a resident from approximately 1993 until the time of the filing of suit, citing to the same laundry list of types of negligent acts as in the Lane Case. The Complaint contains the identical broad allegations as are quoted above with regard to the Amended Complaint in Lane. Montgomery Complaint, ¶¶ 27-29 (S. R. 121-155; R.E. 7). The same attorneys represented the Conservator of Eva Montgomery in the Montgomery Case as represented the Estate of Roberta Lane in the Lane Case.

Just as in the Lane Case, the complaint in the Montgomery Case also did not assert separate claims based on discrete incidents of wrongdoing occurring on certain dates, nor did it connect any certain injuries to any certain incidents. Instead, it alleged that "the scope and severity of the *recurrent wrongs* inflicted

Eva Montgomery has since passed away, and her Estate was substituted as a party.

upon EVA MONTGOMERY while under the care of the facility accelerated the deterioration of her health and physical condition beyond that caused by the normal aging process and resulted in physical and emotional trauma . . ." (emphasis added). Complaint ¶20 (S. R. 121-155; R.E. 7). In short, this complaint on its face pled a series of related acts or omissions in furnishing services to one person.

In 2005, the Montgomery Defendants agreed upon a settlement of the Montgomery Case for a total sum of \$1,300,000. Solvent insurers of the nursing home paid \$700,000 of the settlement, with Adams Community Centers, LLC paying another \$300,000. Georgia Smith, as Conservator for Eva Montgomery, was to attempt to collect yet another \$300,000.00 from MIGA. As was done with the settlement of the Lane Case, the Montgomery Case settlement documents attempt to artificially parse out the continuing acts occurring during the patient's stay at the nursing home and to limit the settlement to delineated acts occurring on certain dates during different policy periods than the ROA policy(s). Exhibit "F" to MIGA's Motion for Summary Judgment (S. R. 156-241; R.E. 8). Again, it is apparent that this was done in a self-serving attempt to prevent MIGA from obtaining a credit under the Guaranty Act for the payments from solvent insurance. MIGA was not a party to the settlement of the Montgomery Case or to the recitals contained in the documentation of the settlement.

5. MIGA's Defense of Magnolia and Notice of Exhaustion Statute Rights.

MIGA provided a defense for Magnolia defendants in both the Lane and Montgomery Cases. MIGA shared the defense costs on a pro rata basis together with the solvent insurers of Magnolia and its related entities and persons. MIGA notified the Magnolia defendants that MIGA claimed a right to a credit under Miss. Code Ann. § 83-23-123 for all payments by solvent insurers covering any portion of the patients' stay in the nursing homes. MIGA's Summary Judgment Exhibits "D" (S. R. 54-120; R. E. 6) and "G" (S. R. 346-353; R.E. 9).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

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